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Ch12:  PHC Coastal Environment & Stage 2 Residential Bach Zone 10.12.15 

  [10.00 am] 

 

SJH:   Yes, thank you.  Firstly I apologise for my appearance, I overlooked the 

hearing this morning and turned up for casual Friday on Thursday.  Just 

record appearances, Ms Scott, you are for the Council, Mr Carranceja 5 

and Ms Silcock as usual? 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir. 

 

SJH:   Ms Walsh, you are for Te Rūnanga? 10 

 

MS WALSH:   Te Rūnanga, sir. 

 

SJH:   And Ms Nicol, you are for Lyttelton Port Company? 

 15 

MS NICOL:   Yes, sir. 

 

SJH:   And at the back Mr Gilpin for, the bach owners? 

 

MR GILPIN:   Yes. 20 

 

SJH:   Right, thank you.  And? 

 

MS SLEMINT:   Melanda Slemint for Taylors Mistake. 

 25 

SJH:   So your interests are the same? 

 

MR GILPIN:   Yes. 

 

SJH:   Ms McLeod? 30 

 

MS McLEOD:   Ainsley McLeod for Transpower, sir. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 35 

MS……….:   Observing, sir. 

 

SJH:   Right, thank you.  Just if we go to the statement of issues, there is an 

amendment that you suggested, Ms Walsh, which I think is accepted by 

the Council? 40 

 

MS WALSH:   Yes, it is, sir. 

 

SJH:   And can be incorporated.  Does anyone else have anything to be 

included in the issues? 45 
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MS NICOL:   Yes, sir, I have talked to my friend about this this morning.  It 

seems that LPC’s submission has been missed in reaching the statement 

of issues.  I have got a written version of what I propose here that I am 

happy to give my friend, but it basically - - - 

 5 

SJH:   Has Ms Scott been able to have a look at it yet? 

 

MS NICOL:   We have discussed the issue. 

 

SJH:   Do you have any problem with it being included? 10 

 

MS SCOTT:   No, sir, we just very briefly spoke about it, but I am happy for 

those changes to be incorporated into a revised version. 

 

SJH:   Okay, right, thank you.  And the Crown is comfortable? 15 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir, thank you. 

 

SJH:   Taylors Mistake? 

 20 

MS SLEMINT:   Sir, I think we have got four more issues that we would like 

to suggest. 

 

SJH:   And they are? 

 25 

MS SLEMINT:   Whether the baches that exist should be in the Coastal zone 

or in the Taylors Mistake Bach zone, whether there should be two sets 

of rules covering new and existing.  The annual individual fatality risk, 

whether all baches in one zone should either be scheduled or 

unscheduled, so whether – issues of cultural landscaping custodianship, 30 

whether they could be included in the assessment matters and the issue 

of certification of occupancy, whether it is possible to do so. 

 

SJH:   Well, we can certainly discuss it but trying to do that I think might be a 

step too far but do you have any problem with those being added to the 35 

issues, Ms Scott? 

 

MS SCOTT:   Sir, I would have to go back and look at the submission to make 

sure - - - 

 40 

SJH:   Just to see the - - - 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, as a preliminary response. 

 

SJH:   I just feel that there have been a number of scope issues raised by the 45 

Council, properly, and we are about to issue a decision soon but my 
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concern is that this very process that has been quite inevitably put into 

chapters but then we have had chapters cut into bits, we have had bits 

deferred.  It is very, very confusing for submitters and I think we have 

got to be somewhat liberal in our interpretation to ensure a fair hearing 

process.  So I do not think anyone would really take any issue, the 5 

Council and the Crown certainly I don’t think would take issue with 

that, would they? 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   No, sir. 

 10 

MS SCOTT:   No, sir, and I would just like to go back to the actual submission. 

 

SJH:   No, I am not suggesting otherwise, you do that and you can confirm to 

us whether you feel it is – if it is not within scope it will have to come 

to us for the Chair to rule on in any event. 15 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir, and in respect of paragraph 4 and 5 of my 

memorandum, I do outline some submissions where we were seeking a 

direction from the Panel in terms of scope.  In light of the Panel’s 

minute that was received on 8 December regarding other scope issues, I 20 

am not going to pursue that and ask for a direction, it can be dealt with 

at the hearing.  The issue there is that some of those submissions and 

the exception is CERA’s submission, the rest do deal with the Tonkin 

and Taylor report. 

 25 

SJH:   Yes, I think the matter is dealing with the climate change coastal issues, 

if I can put it that way, it is not really a scope issue it is simply that it 

has been removed by Act of Parliament effectively and is no longer 

before us so; there is nothing to consider. 

 30 

  [10.05 am] 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, and by way of example those submissions that they are 

specifically listed as chapter 5 and chapter 19, but they only actually 

really commented on chapter 5 which has now been withdrawn but of 35 

course the submissions still are allocated to chapter 19, sir. 

 

SJH:   All right. 

 

MS SCOTT:   And in respect of the CERA submission, I have liaised with my 40 

friend Mr Carranceja about that.  Submission points: point 2.4 and 

point 2.5, they should be deleted from paragraph 5.2, but as I said I am 

not asking for a direction from the Panel on that anymore. 

 

SJH:   Okay. 45 
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MS SCOTT:   Thank you, sir. 

 

SJH:   Now, Ms Dawson has got an issue she wishes to raise, it is really a 

matter of managing overlap. 

 5 

MS DAWSON:   Yes, thank you, Ms Scott.  This is just really so that we are 

clear in terms of managing the overlap between this hearing and the 

natural and cultural heritage hearing.  So in paragraph 6 of your memo 

you say you are going to be calling some witnesses about some matters 

that cover the natural and heritage cultural matters but have to be heard 10 

in this coastal hearing because of the delay and the timetabling issues.  

So can you just, if you can, briefly tell me what aspects they cover, are 

they essentially the objectives and policy type matters? 

 

MS SCOTT:   They are but they are also to do with the environment, the 15 

coastal environment overlay that relates to matters that have come in 

the natural and cultural heritage.  My understanding is that there is 

evidence that has been filed that will be relied on, it will not be 

repeated, but there is, I think it is a policy in chapter 9 that specifically 

relates to the coastal environment and evidence has been filed on that 20 

and that will need to be relied on in this hearing.   

 

MS DAWSON:   Because there is a policy in chapter 19 which is very much 

about natural and cultural environment. 

 25 

MS SCOTT:   Yes. 

 

MS DAWSON:   And presumably the submissions on that policy can only be 

heard in this later hearing because of the timetabling issues even 

though the issues may also be covered in other policies, in similar 30 

policies but in chapter 9. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes.  Well, I think, as you say it is a timing issue with the 

submissions closing later for this hearing and us having a firm list of 

the submitters who are interested but of course they will be given an 35 

opportunity to, any evidence that is relied on that has been filed in 

NCH they can respond to as they wish. 

 

MS DAWSON:   Yes, so it is just really us to be alert to the fact that there is an 

overlap between the evidence and the issues being covered, in relation 40 

to this particular policy in chapter 19; between the two. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes. 

 

SJH:   I think it would be useful - - - 45 
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MS SCOTT:   Yes, chapter 9.  The policy that is in the natural and cultural 

heritage chapter.  And there is also one in chapter 19. 

 

MS DAWSON:   Yes, I see what you mean, there is one in 9 and one in 19 that 

are both to do with the coast. 5 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, and I do apologise that I can’t give you too much insight 

into the natural and cultural heritage evidence, I have been trying to 

stay away from it. 

 10 

MS DAWSON:   Yes, but it is coming up soon so we have to be - - - 

 

SJH:   But it may be useful I think for the Panel if, in opening, natural and 

cultural heritage, it is identified the evidence that will be relied on for 

this later hearing. 15 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, I think that would be very - - - 

 

SJH:   And it is spelt out very clearly and presumably where policies are pretty 

much covering the same thing there will be alignment between them 20 

anyway. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir, I think that is very sensible. 

 

MS DAWSON:   And the other area I think you mentioned was this business 25 

about the coastal environment line and as I understand from the natural 

and cultural heritage pre-hearing that the bulk of the evidence about 

where the coastal environment line should be will be in the natural and 

cultural heritage hearing.  But clearly, given some of the issues, there is 

two issues 1D and 5A which talk about particular areas of the coastal 30 

environment line, well, one of them is broad, “Has the coastal 

environment line been appropriately identified or should it be amended 

in some areas?” 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes. 35 

 

MS DAWSON:   And then the next one relates to four different particular areas 

so I suppose my question is to what extent will the matters of where the 

coastal environment line should be, be reconsidered in this hearing as 

opposed to having been considered in relation to matters like natural 40 

character in the natural and cultural heritage hearing because I think it 

is very important that those going to expert conferencing, for example, 

on this chapter know the extent to which it is being revisited. 
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  [10.10 am] 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, so again evidence will be relied upon but there may well be 

new submitters who will possibly raise new issues and they may need 

to be responded to in additional evidence presented at this hearing. 5 

 

SJH:   But the Council’s position is going to be the same in both? 

 

MS SCOTT:   I would hope so, sir. 

 10 

SJH:   Yes. 

 

MS DAWSON:   Other than where something comes up later. 

 

SJH:   Well, I know it is easy to say.  Particularly - - - 15 

 

MS DAWSON:   Yes, and when our decisions have to at least be 

complementary. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, look the Council will do what it can to assist in terms of 20 

explaining the evidence that has already been presented, and to do that 

to the submitters on this proposal as well and I think, in terms of what 

we will include in opening submissions for natural and cultural 

heritage, that information should be circulated to the submitters for this 

hearing as well. 25 

 

MS DAWSON:   Yes, and if we could just, I suppose if there are particular 

submitters that are going to be arguing in this hearing about the 

location of the coastal environment line, because those submissions 

came up later, then it would be good to know at the time of the natural 30 

and cultural heritage where those are, like the locations, so that if 

someone else is raising that matter in a similar location or a 

complementary location in the first hearing we are alert to what is 

coming up. 

 35 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, so what we can do is identify any additional submitters that 

are not in both hearings so that we are aware of that. 

 

MS DAWSON:   Yes. 

 40 

SJH:   You have not done an analysis of that depth, yet? 

 

MS SCOTT:   I have not, sir, no. 

 

SJH:   Well, I think certainly we need that before natural and cultural heritage 45 

so we have got the cross-referencing. 
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MS SCOTT:   Yes. 

 

SJH:   I mean it may be that there is nobody and if that is the case we would 

likely then in this decision simply be adopting what was decided in 5 

natural and cultural heritage but I think it would be good if the earlier 

Panel was alerted to the specific submitters that may be submitting on 

that.  I mean, some of the submissions are in such form that it is 

difficult sometimes to know exactly what they are seeking so I think 

you will need to cast a fairly wide net when you analyse those 10 

submissions just so that we do not miss anything. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir. 

 

MS DAWSON:   Okay, so thank you, sorry it is a bit confusing but I think with 15 

time we will work it out. 

 

MS SCOTT:   No, I think what you suggest will be helpful. 

 

MS DAWSON:   All right, thank you very much indeed, thank you. 20 

 

SJH:   Is there anything else? 

 

MS DAWSON:   No, that is all, thank you. 

 25 

SJH:   Is there anything else with the issues anyone has here? 

 

MS SLEMINT:   If I could just say on that further issue that the baches would 

be one of those cases and we did not realise we should be submitting on 

that in chapter 9, but we would certainly be wanting to be noticed 30 

across both. 

 

SJH:   Well, if that is an issue for you and if you are taking issue with that line, 

you may like to consider, and you are going to have to discuss other 

matters with Ms Scott, whether or not you should be attempting to 35 

lodge a late submission on chapter 9. 

 

MS SLEMINT:   Okay. 

 

SJH:   And Mr Ball will assist you as well; but if there are only limited 40 

numbers of people concerned with the line on the map it may be more 

efficient if we could identify them and bring them into the earlier 

chapter. 

 

MS SLEMINT:   Yes. 45 
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SJH:   So if you discuss that with Ms Scott and Mr Ball before you leave. 

 

MS SLEMINT:   Absolutely. 

 

SJH:   Okay, thank you. 5 

 

MS SLEMINT:   Thank you. 

 

SJH:   Is there anything else on issues from anybody?  All right, thank you.  

The next matters have all actually been covered off in your suggested 10 

timetable, Ms Scott. 

 

MS SCOTT:   I just have one change to make, sir. 

 

SJH:   Yes. 15 

 

MS SCOTT:   That is just to the expert witness conferencing date, I have 

liaised with the Secretariat and they have confirmed that they have a 

commissioner booked for 19 and 20 January.  So just rather than - - - 

 20 

SJH:   Rather than 18 and 19 it should read 19 and 20? 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir, and if only one day is required then the 19th is the 

preference. 

 25 

SJH:   Okay.  All right, that is noted.  Does anyone else have issues with the 

timetable? 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Sir, just in terms of the expert conferencing timetable 

19 and 20 will work.  The only thing I wish to point out but I think it 30 

can be managed, sir, is that the 19th coincides with the second day of 

the natural and cultural heritage hearing and I think if we just liaise 

with the Secretariat we can manage matters to ensure that witnesses 

involved in both can - - - 

 35 

SJH:   We can shuffle witnesses around to accommodate. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Thank you, sir. 

 

SJH:   I can say that because it is the Secretariat that is going to have to do it. 40 

 

MS SCOTT:   Perhaps if only one day is required the 20th will be a better date 

then, sir, rather than the 19th. 
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  [10.15 am] 

 

SJH:   Yes, all right.  Well, if you liaise with Ms Henstock (ph 5.06) I am sure 

if can be worked out but subject to those comments is the timetable 

acceptable to everybody? 5 

 

 All right, thank  you.  Well, I will confirm that timetable, that is the 

revised proposal by 21 December, I will say statements by 13 January 

2016.  Two days set aside for expert witness conferencing; 19 and 

20 January, just noting that we may have to be flexible about witnesses 10 

in the natural and cultural heritage hearing to accommodate them in the 

conferencing. 

 

 Facilitated mediation, 26 and 27 January; Council’s evidence-in-chief, 

5 February; submitters’ evidence-in-chief, 15 February; rebuttal 15 

evidence, 19 February; cross-examination notices by 12 noon on 

23 February; and the commencement of the hearing on 29 February.   

 

 So your evidence will as usual, Ms Scott, have inclusion of a schedule 

recommending whether to accept, accept in part the 32 assessment of 20 

the preferred version et cetera? 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Is there anything else anyone has to? 25 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Sir, we can give an indication as to witnesses, sir, at this 

stage. 

 

SJH:   Yes, that would be useful. 30 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Sir, the Crown intends to call three witnesses, a planner, 

a landscape architect and an ecologist, sir. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Walsh? 35 

 

MS WALSH:   Sir, TRONT will call a planner and hopes to avoid calling a 

cultural witness as it may be able to rely on earlier evidence in 

chapter 9 but reserves. 

 40 

SJH:   Yes, we will expect cross-referencing where it is appropriate. 

 

MS WALSH:   Yes, sir. 

 

SJH:   Ms Nicol? 45 
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MS NICOL:   LPC will call a planner. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  And Taylors Mistake? 

 

MR GILPIN:   Yes, we will be calling Tom Evatt from Tavendale and Partners 5 

regarding planning evidence and building consents use rights, and an 

expert witness regarding cliff collapse and rock fall, and potentially 

remediation, and potentially a historic heritage witness and landscape. 

 

SJH:   I hear what you say and that is fine, but we are not revisiting natural 10 

hazards here. 

 

MR GILPIN:   No, but he is in response to Don McFarlane is giving evidence 

here. 

 15 

SJH:   All right. 

 

MR GILPIN:   And I think it has moved to individual bach assessments rather 

than an area wide, is the basis of that. 

 20 

SJH:   Okay, all right, that is fine.  Just to repeat that evidence will be pre-read 

and we expect a highlights package.  I am sorry, Ms McLeod? 

 

MS McLEOD:   Thank you, sir.  Transpower are really optimistic that all 

matters will be resolved, but wish to reserve the right to call a planner. 25 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  I repeat there will be pre-circulation of evidence.  If you 

seek to serve by the website it is required to be filed by 3 pm on the due 

date.  That still leaves the obligation to serve on the parties not on the 

Secretariat.  If there is to be late filing of documents leave needs to be 30 

sought with reasons why it is required.  As usual the evidence will be 

pre-read.  Witnesses will be expected to give a highlights packages of 

10 minutes unless anyone applies for extension, and if it is needed they 

would need to set out the reasons for that and, as I say, we wouldn’t 

expect repetition of evidence, it may be cross-referenced.  35 

 

 In relation to legal submissions; the standard order brief legal openings.  

The opening legal should be handed to the Panel Secretariat the day 

before it is to be presented.  Closing legal we will timetable for written 

as has happened in all the other chapters.  Cross-examination the 40 

standard limit of 10 minutes subject of course to anyone’s right to 

apply for longer time if they need it.  The matter is actually set down 

for five days at the moment but, given what we have heard about 

witnesses here today, that seems much longer than we will possibly 

need but we will leave those days aside in any event but it looks to me 45 
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rather more like a two or three day hearing, but we will keep those five 

days reserved thank you. 

 

 Anything else anyone has to raise, Ms Scott? 

 5 

MS SCOTT:   No, thank you, sir. 

 

SJH:   Mr Carranceja? 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   No, sir, thank you. 10 

 

SJH:   Ms Walsh? 

 

MS WALSH:   No, sir. 

 15 

SJH:   Ms Nicol? 

 

MS NICOL:   No, sir. 

 

SJH:   Have you got anything? 20 

 

MR GILPIN:   No, sir. 

 

SJH:   All right.  Well, if we do not see any of you before Christmas have a 

good shortish break and we will see you in the New Year, thank you. 25 

 

MATTER ADJOURNED AT 10.19 AM ACCORDINGLY 


